KALYANASUNDARAM | e

DIRECT TAXATION
& ASSOC'ATES INDIRECT TAXATION
START UP SERVICES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS J——

UDIN: 25219645BMIYQS'1 868
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED,
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (‘the Company™),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31¥ March 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the
cash flow statement and the statement of change in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Ind AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements
give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give atrue and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 (“Ind AS”), as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2025, and its profit, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SA’s) specified u/s 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the company according to Code of ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of 1ndia together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the pravisinns nf the Companies
Act,2013 and the rules made there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical requirements and code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be
included in the report under the provisions of the act and rules made thereunder.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.

o  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures. and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide management a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and wﬁe;:e
Y
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), as amended, issued by the Central Government of India in
term of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
of the order, to the extent applicable,

Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) Wehave sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit.

b) Inour opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination
of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the statement of cash flows and statement of changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rules issued thereunder.

e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2025, taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section I
64(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”.

g) With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of
the Act, as amended, in our opinion, Section 197 read with the Schedule V of the Act is not applicable to Company.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us:

1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

3. There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

4. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either
individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate' Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(g), as provided
under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

5. The Company has not declared or paid dividends during the year, hence no compliance with section 123 of the Companies
Act, 2013 is applicable.

: )
r( CHARTERED ”\
| Z \AcCounTANTS ) & }

S5




6. Based on the examination which included test checks, carried out in accordance with the implementation guidance on reporting
on Audit Trail under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 issued by ICAI, we report that the
company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further,
the audit trail has not been tampered with and has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record

retention.
For Kalyanasundaram and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 005455S
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“Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on Ind AS financial statements of Tonbo Imaging India Private
Limited

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Reports on Other Legal & regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date to the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025:

i.  (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE);
(b) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.
(c) The PPE have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner, designed to cover all the items over a
period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its business.
Pursuant to the program, a portion of the PPE has been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies between the books records and the physical PPE have been noticed.
(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company does not have any immovable property.
(e) According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets during the year.
(f) There are no proceedings against the Company for holding any benami property under Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 and rules made there under.

ii.  (a) According to information and explanation given to us, the management of the Company has conducted physical verification
of inventory at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification during the year.
(b) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess
of INR 5 crore, in aggregate, during the year, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Quarterly return & statement
filed by the Company with such banks or financial institution are materially in agreement with books of account of the
Company.

1if. According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee
or security or granted any loans or advances, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnerships or other
parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

iv, The Company has not given any loan, guarantee and security to Directors or any other person in whom Director is interested.
Accordingly, the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investment, guarantees and security are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and The Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,
2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

vi.  Asinformed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the Company.

vii. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of books of accounts and
records, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Income tax, Duty of Customs and
any other applicable statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanation given to us,
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2025 for the period of more than six
months from the date on which they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no disputed outstanding statutory dues as at 31* March,
2025.

viii. There are no transactlons that were not recorded in the books of account which were surrendered or dlsclosed as income__
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ix.

xi.

xii.

xii.

Xiv.

XV,

XVi,

Xvil.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to
any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the same
were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised any funds on short
term basis which have been utilized for long term purposes. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the order are not
applicable to the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any

entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.
(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or

associate companies.

(a) On the basis of examination of relevant records and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer including debt instruments during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of Para 3(x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or issued any convertible debentures during the year under review.
However, the Company has made a private placement of shares and the requirements of section 42 of the Companies act have
been complied with. Further, the funds raised have been used for the purpose for which they were raised.

(a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have not come across
any instance of fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year,
nor have we been informed of such case by the Management.

(b) We have not filed any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed
under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) The Company has not received any whistle-blower complaints during the year.

The Company is not a ‘Nidhi Company’; Therefore, Para 3(xiii) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order 2020 is not
applicable to the Company.

On the basis of examination of relevant records and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable. The Company has disclosed the
details of transactions with related parties in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination, the Company
has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
(b) We have considered the Internal Audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of section
192 of the Companies act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of examination of relevant records and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

during the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year.




xviii.  During the year there has not been any resignation of statutory auditors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xviii) of the order is not
applicable.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of
realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

XX. There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring a
transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of

section 135 of the said act.

For Kalyanasundaram and Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 0054558 —
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“Annexure B” to the Auditor’s Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013:

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tonbo Imaging India Private Limited (“the Company”) as
of March 31, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
guidance note on audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAT’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation, and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility:

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the guidance note on audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note™) and the standards on auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the guidance note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting:

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. It includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting:

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections.
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the ﬂfﬁ!’ﬂﬂii“q\
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of Zé“'f‘h fiance ™\
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Opinion:

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting, and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2025, based on the internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India.

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 16-05-2025

For Kalyanasundaram and Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 005455S
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TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U74140KA2003PTC033043

BALANCE SHEET
Amount in Rs.
Notes
No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 24,36,07,072 4,78,57,958
Capital work-in-progress 3 72,06,274 -
Intangible assets 4 1,65,19,23,178 1,83,88,15,650
Right-of-use assets 5 9,06,86,621 8,57,69,155
Financial assets
Investments 6 26,000 26,000
Other financial assets 7 79,29,69,792 14,20,85,021
Other non-current assets 8 1,79,85,875 10,52,052
Total non-current assets 2,80,44,04,812 2,11,56,05,836
Current assets
Inventories 9 1,11,14,34,630 1,11,68,62,798
Financial assets
Trade receivables 10 2,10,31,22,610 93,64,27,556
Cash and bank balances 11 1,00,33,25,011 85,67,39,933
Other Bank Balances 11a 95,21,809 29,99,89,440
Loans 12 18,85,000 18,85,000
Other financial assets 7 6,64,540 20,98,747
Other current assets 8 21,11,69,847 41,72,16,733
Total current assets 4,44.11,23,447 3,63,12,20,207
Total Assets 7.24,55,28,259 5,74,68,26,043
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 13 73,32,720 29,89,140
Instruments entirely equity in nature 14 - 60,84,39,642
Other equity 4,89,31,21,731 1,68,98,88,324
Total Equity 4,90,04,54,451 2,30,13,17,106
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 - 15,27,22,894
Lease Liabilities 16 8,78,30,995 8,37,50,118
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 18 8,04,64,355 3,38,91,058
Provisions 19 33,87,90,284 30,10,83,588
Total non-current liabilities 50,70,85,634 57,14,47,658




TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U74140KA2003PTC033043

BALANCE SHEET
Amount in Rs.
Notes
No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 15 76,85,44,376 81,08,65,974
Lease Liabilities 16 1,13,44,307 70,28,739
Trade payables 21
Total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises 2,27,38,689 2,95,88,000
Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro enterprises and small 18,96,78,495 17,38,57,547
Other financial liabilities 17 9,00,000 15,00,000
Provisions 19 13,92,70,477 16,26,56,586
Other current liabilities 20 70,55,11,828 1,68,85,64,433
Total current liabilities 1,83,79,88,172 2,87,40,61,279
Total Liabilities 2,34,50,73,806 3,44,55,08,937
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,24,55,28,259 5,74,68,26,043

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Kalyanasundaram and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 005455:‘5/'/{» AN
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Par;n/er
Mémbership No: 219645

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 16, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

e IHQ_,M

ANKIT KUMAR
Managing Director
DIN: 02953852

Place: Melbourne
Date: May 16, 2025

ANKITA AGARWALLA

Company Secretary
Membership No: A61777

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 16, 2025

Director
DIN: 06380429

Place: Bangalore
Date: May 16, 2025

e

ASHANKART
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2025




TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U74140KA2003PTC033043

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Amount in Rs.
Particulars Notes For the Year ended For the Year ended
No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Revenue from Operations 22 4,69,08,23,462 4,28,18,91,024
Other Income 23 5,30,91,887 3,70,72,995
Total Income 4,74,39,15,349 4,31,89,64,019
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 24 2,15,30,85,756 2,13,27,46,497
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods 25 (10,69,77,253) 6,65,47,273
Employee Benefits Expenses 26 44,28,97,455 13,05,52,060
Finance Costs 27 16,78,27,774 7,03,63,146
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 28 26,59,06,377 13,39,54,174
Other expenses 29 82,18,37,258 83,52,43,676
Total expenses 3,74,45,77,367 3,36,94,06,826
Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax 99,93,37,982 94,95,57,193
Exceptional items 77,565,524 40,49,887
Profit before tax 99,15,82,458 94,55,07,305
Tax expense
Current tax 21,80,00,000 21,15,00,000
MAT Credit - 1,50,15,791
Deferred tax 4,65,75,742 3,35,46,095
Profit for the year, net of Tax 72,70,06,716 68,54,45,419
Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the Gain /(Loss) of defined benefit plans (3,79,406) (13,68,969)
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Tax relating to remeasurement of defined benefit plans 95,505 3,55,932
Total Other Comprehensive Income (2,83,901) (10,13,037)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 72,67,22,815 68,44 32,382
Earnings per equity share
Basic Earning per share of Face Value of Rs. 10 each 35 6,369 6,261
Diluted Earning per share of Face Value of Rs. 10 each 35 1,026 1,058

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit and Loss.

As per our Report of even date attached

For Kalyanasundaram and Associates

Fq‘i and on behalf of the Board of Directors
/
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Managing Director
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Director
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Membership No.: 219645 \
Place: Bangalore )(' L4 (P )
Date: May 16, 2025 M/ 4 .
ANKITA AGARWALLA S SHANKARTS
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
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TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U74140KA2003PTC033043

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Amount in Rs.
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash flow from Operating Activities:
Profit before tax 99,15,82,458 94,55,07,305
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26,59,06,377 13,39,54,174
Finance costs 12,55,80,183 5,39,59,584
Interest income (4,13,01,498) (3,33,94,961)
Net loss on sale/ discarding of Investment - 49,000
Transfer of Share Options Outstanding account 10,24,03,516 (73,01,598)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (2,83,901) 10,13,037
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 1,44,38,87,135 1,09,37,86,541
Adjustments for changes in Working Capital :
- (Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets (non-current) (65,08,84,771) (3,24,68,690)
- (Increase)/ decrease in other non-current assets (1,69,33,823) 2,35,910
- (Increase)/ decrease in inventories 54,28,168 {72,10,04,216)
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (1,16,66,95,053) (52,48,28,569)
- (Increase)/ decrease in other current assets 20,60,46,885 (21,99,35,137)
- (Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets (current) 14,34,207 (11,53,502)
- (Increase)/decrease in loans - 6,00,000
- Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 89,71,638 (8,26,33,453)
- Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities (6,00,000) {12,90,806)
- Increase/ (decrease) in provisions (non current) 3,77,06,696 21,97,74,326
- Increase/ (decrease) in current provisions 9,07,85,296 59,39,372
- Increase/ (decrease) in Deferred Income - (1,81,983)
- Increase/ (decrease) in other current liabilities (98,30,52,605) 1,10,04,35,313
Cash generated from Operating Activities (1,02,39,06,227) 83,72,75,107
- Income taxes paid (net) (33,21,71,047) (5,39,54,106)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (1,35,60,77,371) 78,33,21,001
Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and
capital work in progress (21,48,24,912) (2,68,55,048)
Payments for purchase of intangible assets (5.06,26,226) (1,84,58,54,676)
Payments for purchase of Right of use of assets (2,14,35,621) (6,23,44,633)
Interest received 4,13,01,498 3,33,94,961
Net Cash from / (used in ) Investing Activities (24,55,85,261) {1,90,16,59,397)




TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U74140KA2003PTC033043

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Amount in Rs.

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cash flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds / (repayment) from short term borrowings (3,33,76,870) 38,34,44,952
Proceeds / (Repayment) of long term borrowings (16,16,67,622) 16,99,48,230
Principal repayment of lease liabilities 83,96,445 5,56,40,927
Finance cost paid (12,55,80,183) (5,39,59,584)
Issue of Equity shares 1,75,00,00,000 -
Issue of Cumulative Preference Shares 2,00,08,212 1,32,29,92,286
Net Cash from / (used in) Financing Activities 1,45,77,79,982 1,87,80,66,811
Net Increase/(Decrease) in cash & cash equivalents (14,38,82,553) 75,97,28,415
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,15,67,29,372 39,70,00,956
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,01,28,46,820 1,15,67,29,372

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the Statement of Profit and Loss.
As per our Report of even date attached

For Kalyanasundaram and Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Du’e/e ﬂré“d'{"
Chartered Accountants /1 :
Firm Registration No. 0054555 B __jf_!l PV

s Afe 17123 e

%mbership No.: 219645 \ft‘\\_/ 4

ANKIT KUMAR
Managing Director Director
DIN: 02953852 DIN: 06380429

Place: Melbourne
Date: May 16, 2025
Place: Bangalore

Date: May 16, 2025 M (

ANKITA AGARWALLA § A HANKARTS
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: A61777

Place: Bangalore Place: Mumbai
Date: May 16, 2025 Date: May 16, 2025
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TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

Background

Tonbo Imaging India Private Limited was incorporated on 18 December, 2003, as a private limited company
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 as Sarnoff Innovative Technologies Private Limited, The
registered office of the Company is in Bangalore.

The Company engages in providing vision technology based products and solutions.

The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 16, 2025.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

1  Material accounting policy information
This note provides a list of material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the Ind AS
Financial Statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

1.1 Statement of Compliance

The Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with and comply
in all material respects with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
and other relevant provisions of the Act, as amended.

2  Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention
and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilities which are
measured at fair value as explained in the accounting volicies below.

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently
applied, by the Company, to all the periods presented in the said financial statements.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or '¥')
and are rounded to the nearest rupee, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

Standards notified but not vet effective
There are no new standards that are notified, but not yet effective, upto the date of issuance of the
Financial Statements.

" CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS




TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

21

22

Current / non- current classification

An asset is classified as current if:

a) It is expected to be realized or sold or consumed in the Company's normal operating cycle;

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

c) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or It is cash or cash
equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current if:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

c) It is expected to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period;

d) It has no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between acquisition of assets for processing / trading / assembling and
their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Property, Plant and Equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Subsequent costs relating to day-to-
day servicing of the item are not recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment; rather, these costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

CHARTERED \O
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TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

2.3

2.5

2.8

27

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their
useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 1l of the Companies Act 2013, using the straight-
line method, except in respect of leasehold improvement for which the company has estimated the
useful life of Ten years based on the initial lease term. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a
period is proportionately charged for the period of use.

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability and lease payments made before the commencement date.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis. Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortization is recognized on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Derecognition of Intangible assets

An intangible asset is' derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from continued use of intangible asset. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognized in statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognized.

Impairment

The carrying value of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for Impairment. If any indication
exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and impairment is recognized if the carrying
amount of these assels exceeds their recoverable amount.




TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

2.8

29

210

211

Reversal of impairment loss

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.

Aa impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized directly in other comprehensive income
and presented within equity.

Inventories

Inventories comprise of Raw Materials and Finished Goods are stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value.

Cost of inventory comprises all costs of purchase including duties and taxes, freight inwards and
other expenditure directly attributable to acquisition and to bring the inventories to its present
location and condition. Cost of finished goods include cost of materials consumed and cost of
conversion. Cost of raw materials is determined on FIFO basis.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less estimated cost necessary
to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original
maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Share Capital

Equity share capital represents the amount received from shareholders towards subscribed capital,
net of share issue expenses (if anv).

Any premium received over and above the face value of shares is classified under securities premium
reserve.

The Company is a private limited company and its shares are not publicly traded.




TONBQO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

2.12 Leases

213

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease ie., if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange of
consideratiorn.

Company as a lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Company. Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components.

Lease liabilities

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments.

The lease payments are discounted using the lessee's incremental borrowing rate or fixed government
bond or deposit rate. Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance
cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

a) Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
the asset and the liability on a net basis.

b) Deferred Tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and labilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only if it is probable that sufficient future
taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted as
on the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax is recognised in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in Other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
Other comprehensive income.

- O
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TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

2.14

215

216

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre tax rates that reflects, where appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Ind AS Financial Statements but are disclosed in notes.

Contingent asset is neither recognized nor disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements.
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contract with customer is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has generally

services before transferring them to the customer.

Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognized at the point in time when control is transferred to the
customer, generally on dispatch/delivery of the goods or terms as agreed with the customer. The
Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. Revenue excludes taxes
collected from customers, which are subsequently remitted to governmental authorities.

Other Income

Other income comprises of interest income.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the deposits and at the interest rate settled with the Banks/Financial
Institutions.
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
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2.18

219

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs include:

Interest expense calculated using the effective interest rate method,

Finance charges in respect of finance leases, and
Exchange differences arising from foreign currency boirowings to the extent that they are regarded
as an adjustment to interest costs.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the period of their
accrual.

Performance Warranties

Provisions for an estimated cost of performance warranties are recorded on booking of revenue. The
provisions are later written back over the elapsed warranty period. The estimations towards warranty
are based on historical warranty trends and technical evaluation. It is measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
estimates used are reviewed periodically and adjusted as appropriate.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

(i) Employee benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus and performance linked rewards falling due
wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits
and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service. The obligations are
presented as current liability in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to
defer the settlement for at least 12 months after reporting date.

(if) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(@) Detfined benetit plans - Gratuity

Company has taken a Master Policy with the ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Ltd to cover its
liability towards employees' gratuity. Provisions in respect of liabilities of gratuity is made based on
actuarial valuation made by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date. Gains and Losses
through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability are recognized in other comprehensive
income. The actual return of the plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in Other comprehensive income.
They are included in retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in profit and loss as an Expense.

(L) Defived Conlributivi Flat

Company contributes to the appropriate authorities its share of the Members Provident Fund Account
as per the Employees' Provident Fund Act, 1952.
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

2.20 Foreign currency translation

2.21

222

(1)

a. Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates. The financial statement are presented in
Indian Rupee (‘Rupees’ or ') which is the Company's functional and reporting currency.

b. Transaction and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the
transactions. At the year end, all the assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are restated
at the closing exchange rates. Exchange differences resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation of such monetary assets and liabilities at the year end are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For the
purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average numbers of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of dilutive potential equity shares, if any.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Initial recognition and measurement

The Company recognises financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial assets (excluding trade receivables which do not
contain a significant financing component) and liabilities are recognised at fair value on initial
recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
and loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition.




TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

(ii) Subsequent measurement

A

(a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in the statement of profit and loss using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss.
Impairment losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss. Financial assets at amortised cost
comprises of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, security deposits and other financial assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions and other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business and reflects Company’s unconditional right to consideration (that is,
payment is due only on the passage of time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the
transaction price as they do not contain significant financing components. The Company holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures
them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less loss allowance.

Other financial assets:

On initial recognition, Other financial assets are measured at fair value, and subsequently, measured
at the amortised cost, less impairment if any. Loss arising from impairment, if any is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is
held with in a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued
through statement of profit and loss.
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B

(iii)

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cast

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
Company’s financial liabilities consist of trade payables and Other financial liabilities.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end
of financial year, which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within the credit
period. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within
12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial
assets which are not fair valued through profit or loss,

Expected Credit Losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to the 12-months
expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date), if the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly; or

Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the life of the financial instrument),if the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased

significantly.

For trade receivables the Company applies 'simplified approach’ which requires expected lifetime
Insses to he recagnized fram initial recagnition of the receivahles

The Company uses historical default rates to determine impairment loss on the portfolio of trade
receivables. At every reporting date these historical default rates are reviewed and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analyzed.

For other assets, the Company uses 12 month ECL to provide for impairment loss where there is no
significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk full lifetime ECL is used.

A financial asset is 'credit- impaired' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following ebservable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not

consider otherwise;
- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or the

disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and avaitable without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward- looking information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
-the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the

Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is 90 days or more past due.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject
to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the
reporting date to the amount that is required to be recognised, is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition
under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the
Company's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Interest recognition

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised using the effective
interest rate method and are disclosed as other income in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.
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Non-financial assets
Tangible and Intangible assets

Property, Plant and equipment and intangible assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability
whenever there is an indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are
largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined
for cash generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Fair Value Measurement

A number of Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value,
for financial assets and liabilities. Fair value is the price that would be received on sell of an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. A fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal market or the most
advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Ind AS Financial
Statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. The fair value hierarchy is described as below:

a) Level 1 - unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

b) Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

¢) Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the Ind AS Financial Statements at fair value on a
recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of fair value
hierarchy.

Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the
following methods. When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining
fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

a) Investment in equity and debt securities

The fair value is determined by reference to their quoted price at the reporting date. In the absence of
quoted price, the fair value of the financial asset is measured using valuation techniques.

b) Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. However, in respect of such financial
instruments, fair value generally approximates the carrying amount due to short term nature of such
assets.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of Ind AS Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and contingent liabilities
at the date of Ind AS Financial Statements, income and expense during the period. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the periods in which the estimates are revised and in future periods which
are affected.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments and estimates, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the Ind
AS Financial Statements.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8:

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies and the correction of errors. Also, they clarify how entities use measurement
techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
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The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023 and
apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted as long as this fact is disclosed.

The following are areas involving critical estimates and judgments:

Judgements:

Taxes
Contingencies
Leases

Estimates:

Property, Plant & Equipment
Employee benefit plans
Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Taxes

Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies, including estimates of temporary differences reversing on account of available
benefits from the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is
required to determine the amonnt of deferred tax assets that can he recognized, hased upon the Tikely
timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very
difficult to quantify reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the
notes but are not recognised. Potential liabilities that are remote are neither recognized nor disclosed
as contingent liability. The management judgement is involved in classification under 'remote’,
'possible’ or '‘probable’ which is carried out based on expert advice, past judgements, experiences etc.

Leases

The company recognizes the leased asset as well as a liability equal to the present value of the lease
payments. To calculate the present value of the lease payments, the company uses the incremental
borrowing rate or the rate of interest that would have been charged if the company had borrowed the
funds to purchase the asset or Government secured deposit rate. Identifying the incremental
borrowing rate requires judgment and may involve assessing factors such as the Company's
creditworthiness, market conditions, and the term of the lease.
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Property, Plant & Equipment

Impairment

The value in use calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the respective asset category and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, an impairment loss which is material in
nature is accounted for.

Useful lives

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. This assessment may result in change in the depreciation expense in future periods.

Employee benefit plans
Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The present value of obligations under defined benefit plan and other long term employment benefits
is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumpftions
that may differ from actual development in the future. These include the determination of the discount
rate, future salary escalations, attrition rate and mortality rates Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long term nature, these obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. Information about the various
estimates and assumptions made in determining present value of defined benefit obligation are
disclosed in notes to accounts.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where
this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair value. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits before tax are adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The
cash flows from regular revenue generating (operating activities), investing and financing activities of
the Company are segregated.

Accounting Policies not specifically referred above are consistent with generally accepted Accounting
practices
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Amount in Rs.
3 Property, Plant and Equipment
Particulars Data Processing Furnitere & Office Plant & Machinery Leasehold Total Capital work Total
Eguipment Fixtiwes Equipment Improvements in progress
Year ended March 31, 2024
Gross carrying value as at April 1, 2023 29,02,219 52.90,000 44,28,074 3,39,49,554 1,10,82,383 5,78,52,230 - -
Additions 1,24,78,889 61,200 21,70,959 62,92,000 49,52,000 2,68,55,048 - -
Disposals = = = - = - - _
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2024 1,53,81,108 651,200 65,99,033 4,02,41,554 1,60,34,383 8,47,07,278 - -
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2023 23,06,834 12.78,294 23,55,605 1,68,17,438 33,37,299 2,67,95471 - -
Depreciation charge during the year 14,23,000 &.00,279 9,10,858 58,28,505 12,91,207 1,00,53,849 - -
Disposals - - . - - - . ;
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2024 37,29,834 25.78,574 32,66,463 2,26,45,943 46,28,506 3,68,49,320 B -
Net carrying value as at March 31, 2024 1,16,51,274 38.72,626 33,32,570 1,75,95,611 1,14,05,877 4,78,57,958 - -
Year ended March 31, 2025
Gross carrying value as at April 1, 2024 1,53,81,108 651,200 65,99,033 4,02,41,554 1,60,34,383 8,47,07,278 E -
Additions 1,67,49,453 4-24,120 2,18,71,769 64,15,249 16,53,64,321 21,48,24,912 - -
Disposals - - - s - 5 = -
Gross carrying value as at March 31, 2025 3,21,30,561 1,0&,75,320 2,84,70,802 4,66,56,803 18,13,98,704 29,95,32,190 - -
Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2024 37,29,834 2578574 32,66,463 2,26,45,943 46,28,506 3,68,49,320 - -
Depreciation charge during the year 64,64,801 2,71,498 26,56,515 64,52,017 26,30,967 1,90,75,798 - -
Disposals - - - = = F .
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2025 1,01,94,635 34,50,072 59,22,978 2,90,97,960 72,659,473 5,59,25,118 -

Net carrying value as at March 31,2025 2,19,35,926 74,25,248 2,25,47,824 1,75,58,842 17,41,39,231 24,36,07,072 - -
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Amount in Rs.
5 Right-of-use assets
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Office Building
Cost / Deemed Cost 8,57,69,155 3,89,14,303
Additions 2,92,50,547 6,23,44,633
Deletions 78,14,926 -
Accumulated Depreciation 1.65,18,155 1,54,89,781
Balance 9,06,86,621 8,57,69,155
6 Investments
Non Current Current
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Investment in Equity Instruments at cost:
(Non traded, unquoted, fully paid up)
2,600 (2024 : 2600) equity shares of Rs. 10 each of 26,000 26,000 = -
MEIL ICOMM Tonbo Tech Private Limited
Balance 26,000 26,000 - -
7 Other Financial Assets
Non Current Current
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rental Deposits 1,08,46,991 56,61,684 - -
Sales Tax Deposits 10,000 10,000 - -
Earmest Money Deposits 69,000 - 6,64,540 20,98,747
Term Deposit with maturity of more than 12 months 78,20,28,801 13,64,08,136 - -
Others 15,000 5,201 - -
Balance 79,29,69,792 14,20,85,021 6,64,540 20,98,747
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TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts

Amount in Rs.

19 Provisions

20

21

Non Current Current
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for taxes (net of advance taxes paid and 5 = 3,45,15,541 14,90,42,191
refunds receivable)
Provision for Gratuity 1,49,82,457 68,40,110 3,85,379 2,07,530
Provision for Compensated absences 82,92,861 43,03,718 8,45,243 3,77,842
Provision - Warranties 31,55,14,966 28,99,39,760 10,35,24,314 1,30,29,022
Total - 33,87,90,284 30,10,83,588 13,92,70,477 16,26,56,586
Other liabilities

Non Current Current
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Advance from Customers = - - -~ T a - - 8,43,57,926 29,08,87,097
Statutory Liabilities & - 1,94,03,347 2,17,55,873
Other Payables < 5 60,17,50,555 1,37,59,21,463
Total = . 70,55,11,828 1,68,85,64,432
Trade Payables
Particulars March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 2,27,38,689 2,95,88,000
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 18,96,78,495 17,38,57,547
Total 21,24,17,185 20,34,45,547




TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts
Amount in Rs.

Trade Payable ageing schedule as at March 31, 2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment =

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
MSME 2,27,38,689 - - - 2,27,38,689
Others 18,60,15,448 36,63,047 - - 18,96,78,495
Disputed dues- MSME = - = 2 -
Disputed dues- Others - - . - E
Sub total - 20,87,54,138 36,63,047 - - 21,24,17,185
MSME - Undue
Others - Undue
Total 21,24,17,185
Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024
Particulars QOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
MSME 2,95,88,000 _ - - - 2,95,88,000
Others 17,30,54,547 8,03,000 - - 17,38,57,547
Disputed dues- MSME - - = = -
Disputed dues- Others - - - . =
Sub total 20,26,42,547 8,03,000 - - 20,34,45,547

MSME - Undue .
Others - Undue

Total 20,34,45,547
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Amount in Rs.
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
22 Revenue from operations
Sale of product and solutions 4,64,38,18,126 3,83,00,82,022
Other operating revenues 4,70,05,336 45,18,09,002
4,69,08,23,462 4,28,18,91,024
23 Other income
Interest Earmed 4,13,01,498 3,33,94,961
Rental Income 18,00,000 31,50,000
Gain on Settlement of Liabilities 82,96,080 -
Finance Income 6,37,936 5,28,034
Miscellenous Income ( Sale of Scrips) 10,56,373 -
5,30,91,887 3,70,72,995
24 Cost of materials consumed
Opening Stock of Raw Material 1,06,26,63,793 27,51,12,304
Add: Purchases 2,04,06,80,335 2,92,02,97,985
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Material (95,02,58,372) (1,06,26,63,793)
2,15,30,85,756 2,13,27,46,497
25 Changes in inventories
Opening Stock of Finished Goods 5,41,99,005 12,07,46,278
Less: Closing Stock of Finished Goods (16,11,76,259) (5,41,99,005)
(10,69,77,253) 6,65,47,273
26 Employee benefits expense
Salaries and bonus 27,98,05,910 10,93,04,326
Gratuity 82,25,468 52,39,319
Leave Encashment 48,92,783 31,47,573
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 2,06,74,918 80,93,768
Insurance 92,12,183 61,79,848
Staff Welfare expenses 1,76,82,677 58,88,824
Expense on ESOP (Written back) 10,24,03,516 (73,01,598)
44,28,97,455 13,05,52,060
27 Finance Cost
Interest Expenses 12,55,80,183 5,39,59,584
Finance Charges 4,22,47,591 1,64,03,562
16,78,27,774 7,03,63,146
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Notes to Accounts

Amount in Rs,
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
28 Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation
On Property Plant and Equipment 1,90,75,798 1,00,55,376
Amortisation
Of Right of Use of Asset 1,65,18,155 95,02,000
Of Intangible Assets 23,03,12,423 11,43,96,798
26,59,06,377 13,39,54,174
29 Other expenses
Technical Support Services 11,97,06,373 12,02,60,851
Rent 15,37,304 7,87,878
Repairs and Maintenance
- Buildings 1,49,76,149 34,96,898
- Others 1,59,13,870 72,69,881
Provision for Warranty / (Write back) 8,14,86,202 20,82,04,110
Insurance 28,33,736 77,78,621
Rates and Taxes 45,55,817 90,17,352
Electricity and Water 44,40,563 11,13,092
Communication 29,28,982 13,30,942
Travel and Conveyance 10,23,53,782 4,54,53,880
Legal and Professional Fees 3,99,44,171 4,67,44,830
Freight 3,78,18,041 1,51,63,218
Royalty Fees/Technical Know-how 10,51,27,768
Debtors Written off 19,05,13,702 21,82,11,402
Consumables 70,58,804 21,63,168
Printing and Stationery 21,44,689 21,18,920
Recruitment and Training 48,24,842 15,62,727
Bank Charges 95,37,218 64,47,640
Sales and Marketing expenses 15,02,91,813 2,50,93,654
Corporate Social Responsibility 1,30,00,000 65,25,000
Loss on Disposal of Assets 79,653,481 -
Miscellaneous expenses 80,17,712 13,71,845
82,18,37,258 83,52,43,676
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30 Company as a Lessee

The details of the right-of-use assets held by the Company is as follows:

Leasehold land Buildings March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Balance 8,57,69,155 3,89,14,303
Additions 2,92,50,547 6,23,44,633
Derecognition 78,14,926 -
Accumulated Depreciation 1,65,18,155 1,54,89,781
Translation exchange differences - =
Closing Balance 9,06,86,621 8,57,69,155

The reconciliation of lease liabilities for the year ended is as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance as at beginning of the year 9,07,78,858 3,51,37,930
Additions 2,92,50,547 6,234,634
Amounts recognized in statement of profit and loss as interest exp 71,21,696 43,67,816
Payment of lease liabilities 1,96,79,718 1,10,71,522
Derecognition 82,96,081 -
Translation exchange differences . -
Balance as at end of the year 9,91,75,302 9,07,78,858

The lease rental expense relating to short-term leases recognized in the statement of profit and loss for the
year amounted to Rs. 15,37,304 (2024 : Rs. 7,87,878)

The following table presents a maturity analysis of expected undiscounted cash flows for lease liabilities:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within one year 1,55,17,442 83,96,445
One to two years 1,79,64,938 1,55,17,551
Two to three years 2,04,48,953 1,79,64,939
Three to five years 1,81,98,644 2,04,48,953
Thereafter 2,70,45,325 2,84,50,970
Total lease liabilities 9,91,75,302 9,07,78,858

Certain lease agreements include options to terminate or extend the leases. The lease agreements do not
contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.
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Notes to Accounts Amount in Rs.

31 A. Defined contribution plans
The Company has defined contribution retirement benefit plans for its employees.

The Company's contributions to provident fund, pension scheme and employee state insurance scheme are made to the relevant
government authorities as per the prescribed rules and regulations. The Company's contributions to the above defined contribution
plans are recognised as employee benefit expenses in the statement of profit and loss for the year in which they are due

The Company's contribution to provident, pension, superannuation funds and to employees state insurance scheme aggregating to
Rs. 2,06,74,918 (2024 : Rs. 80,93,768) has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss under the head employee benefits

expense [Refer Note 26]

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Contribution to provident fund, included under contribution to provident and other funds 2,06,74,918 80,93,768

B. Defined benefit plans

Gratuity and Leave Encashment

The Company offers gratuity plan for its qualified employees which is payable as per the requirements of Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972. The benefit vests upon completion of five years of continuous service and once vested it is payable to employees on
retirement or on termination of employment. In case of death while in service, the gratuity is payable irrespective of vesting,

Risk exposure to defined benefit plans
The plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: Investment risk, Liquidity risk and Market risk.

Actuarial risk:

It is the risk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:

Adverse Salary Growth Experience: Salary hikes that are higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an increase in
Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

Variability in mortality rates: If actual mortality rates are higher than assumed mortality rate then the Gratuity Benefits will be paid
earlier than expected. Since there is no condition of vesting on the death benefit, the acceleration of cash flow will lead to an
actuarial loss or gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount rate.

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate then the Gratuity Benefits will
be paid earlier than expected. The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested as at the resignation date.

Investment risk:

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value
of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future discount rate. This
can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in the discount rate during the
inter-valuation period.

Liquidity risk:
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of
such employees resign/retire from the company there can be strain on the cash flows.
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Market risk:

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. One actuarial
assumption that has a material effect is the discount rate. The discount rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in
discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the
yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the valuation of lability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the
Valuation Date.

The following table sets out the status of the Gratuity and Compensated Absence benefits

Pasticulars Gratuity Compensated Absence
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

a Statement of profit and loss

Current Service cost 77,72,253 26,11,016 48,92,783 31,47,574

Interest cost (net) 4,95,752 2,46,298 - -

Immediate Recognition of (Gain)/Losses - - = -

Net benefit expense 82,68,005 28,597,314 48,92,783 31,47,574
b Balance Sheet

Defined benefit obligations (1,53,67,836)  (70,47,640) (91,38,105) (46,81,561)

Fair value of plan assets 1,49,82,457 = - =

Net plan liability (3.85,379) (70,47,640) (91,38,105) {46,81,561)

[Surplus/ (Deficit)}

Current defined benefit obligations (3.85,379) (2,07,530) (8/45,243) (3,77,842)

Non-current defined benefit obligations - (68,40,110) (82,92,862) (43,03,719)

Changes in present value of the
defined benefit obligations are as

n

follows:

Opening defined benefit obligations (7047,640)  (37,11,743) (46,81,561) (19,67,560)
Current service cost (77,72,253) (26,11,016) (48,92,783) (31,47,574)
Interest cost (4,95,752) (2/46,298) - -
Re-measurement gains (losses) in OCIL (2,41,373) (13,68,969) - -

Actuarial changes arising from

changes in demographic assumptions - - =

Actuarial changes arising from

changes in financial assumptions - : 3 =
Experience adjustments = - . -
Benefits paid 1,89,182 8,90,386 4,36,239 4,33,573
Closing defined benefit obligations (1,53,67,836) (70,47,640) (91,38,105) (46,81,561)

d Changes in fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

Particulars Gratuity Compensated Absence
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Opening fair value of plan assets - - - -
Interest income 5,20,490 - - -
Contributions 1,47,89,182 - - -
Re-measurement gains (losses) in OCI (1,38,033) - = =
Benefits paid (1,89,182) - - -
Closing fair value of plan assets 1,49,82,457 - - -

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the
period over which the obligation is to be settled.
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e The principal assumptions used in determining Gratuity and Compensated Absence for the Company are shown below:

Particulars Gratuity Compensated Absence

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Discount rate 7.13% 7.23% 7.13% 7.23%
Estimated Rate of salary increases 10.00% 10% 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition Rate 9.00% 9% 9.00% 9.00%
Expected rate of return on assets 0.00% 0% 0.00% 0.00%

We understand that level of inflation, career promotions, productivity gains and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand
in the employment market are factored in the assumption of future salary increases.
No allowance has been made for discretionary payments in the assumptions as the company has not notified such practices

Particulars Gratuity Compensated Absence
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24

Discount Rate

Impact of increase -12.97% -12.86% -1291% -12.84%

Impact of decrease 15.98% 15.93% 16.13% 16.14%

Salary Escalation Rate

Impact of increase 12.06% 10.33% 15.10% 15.08%

Impact of decrease -10.54% -9.68% -12.36% 1 -12.26%

Mortality Rate 0.09% -0.08% 0.15% -0.14%

Attrition Rate

Impact of increase -4.27% -3.79% -4.40% -4.34%

Impact of decrease 4.77% 4.27% 5.01% 4.99%

P.U.C method has been used. If an employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in earlier
years, these benefits are attributed on a straight-line basis. The limitations are that in assessing the change other parameters are
kept constant. As some of the assumptions may be correlated, it is unlikely that changes in assumptions will occur in isolation of
one another.

There is no change from the previous period in the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of above analysis, except that
the base rates have changed.

f The defined benefit obligations are expected to mature after March 31, 2025 as follows:

Gratuity Compensated Absence
Year Ended 31st March PV Actual Value PV Actual Value
2025 3,65,401 3,864,772 4,02,353 4,33,832
2026 3,00,890 3,39,431 3,67,101 4,22,700
2027 5,56,781 6,59,388 6,08,269 7,75,590
2028 2,40,085 3,10,836 3,03,260 4,00,980
2029 4,90,299 6,54,957 3,58,009 5,15,851
Thereafter 20,03,175 34,16,917 20,12,028 37,51,990

Weighted average duration for the payment of these cash flows 20.29%
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32 Fair Value Measurement of Financial assets and liabilities
a Category of Financial Instruments
As at March 31, 2025
Fair value Fair value through  Amortized cost  Total carrying
. through profit other value
Particulars and loss comprehensive
income
Financial assets
Investments - - 26,000 26,000
Trade receivables (including unbilled) - - 2,10,31,22,610  2,10,31,22,610
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,00,33,25,011  1,00,33,25,011
Qther bank balances - - 95,21,809 95,21,809
Loans - - 18,85,000 18,85,000
Others 1,15,11,531 - 78,21,22,801 79,36,34,332
Total 1,15,11,531 - 3,90,00,03,231 3,91,15,14,761
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 76,85,44,376 76,85,44,376
Lease liabilities 9,91,75,302 - B 9,91,75,302
Trade payables (including unbilled and accruals) - - 21,24,17,185 21,24,17,185
Others - - 9,00,000 9,00,000
Total 9,91,75,302 - 98,18,61,561 1,08,10,36,864
As at March 31, 2024
Fair value Fair value through  Amortized cost Total carrying
Particulars through profit other value
and loss comprehensive

Financial assets
Investments - - 26,000 26,000
Trade receivables (including unbilled) - - 93,64,27,556 93,64,27,556
Cash and cash equivalents - - 85,67,39,933 85,67,39,933
Other bank balances - - 29,99,89,440 29,99,89,440
Loans - - 18,85,000 18,85,000
Others 77,60,431 - 13,64,18,136 14,41,78,567
Total 77,60,431 - 2,23,14,86,065 2,23,92,46,496
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 31,95,62,356 - 64,40,26,512 96,35,88,868
Lease liabilities 9,07,78,857 - - 9,07,78,857
Trade payables (including unbilled and accruals) - - 20,34,45,547 20,34,45,547
Others - - 15,00,000 15,00,000
Total 41,03,41,213 - 84,89,72,060 1,25,93,13,273
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b Financial Instruments at Fair Value

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at 31st March, 2025
Financial assets
Investments - In equity instruments - - 26,000 26,000
Cash and cash equivalents 1,00,33,25,011 - - 1,00,33,25,011
Other bank balances 95,21,809 - - 95,21,809
Others 78,21,22,801 2,10,31,22,610 1,33,96,531  2,89,86,41,942
Total 1,79,49,69,621 2,10,31,22,610 1,34,22,531  3,91,15,14,761
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - 76,85,44,376 - 76,85,44,376
Lease liabilities - 9,91,75,302 - 9,91,75,302
Trade payables (including unbilled and accruals) - 21,24,17,185 - 21,24,17,185
Others - - 9,00,000 9,00,000
Total - 1,08,01,36,864 9,00,000 1,08,10,36,864
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
As at March 31, 2024
Financial assets .
Investments - In equity instruments - - 26,000 26,000
Cash and cash equivalents 85,67,39,933 - - 85,67,39,933
Other bank balances 29,99,89,440 - - 29,99,89,440
Others 13,64,18,136 93,64,27,556 96,45431  1,08,24,91,124
Total 1,29,31,47,509 93,64,27,556 96,71,431  2,23,92,46,496
Financial liabilities
Borrowings . 96,35,88,868 - 96,35,88,868
Lease liabilities - 9,07,78,857 - 9,07,78,857
Trade payables (including unbilled and accruals) - 20,34,45,547 - 20,34,45,547
Others - - 15,00,000 15,00,000
Total - 1,25,78,13,273 15,00,000 1,25,93,13,273
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(i) Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either
observable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

e Level 1: Inputs are Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This includes
quoted equity instruments, investments in mutual funds that have quoted price.

* Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable. This includes unquoted floating and fixed rate borrowing,

* Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:
- the fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.

(iii) Valuation process
The finance department of the Company includes a team that performs the valuations of financial assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair values.

The main level 3 inputs for security deposits is discounted using risk free rate adjusted for appropriate level of risk

(iv) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as
their fair values, due to their short term nature.
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques
which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimate.
For other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair value.

¢ Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost

The Management has assessed that fair value of loans, trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other
financial assets, trade payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to their short-
term nature. Difference between carrying amount of Bank deposits, other financial assets, borrowings and other financial
liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost is not significant in each of the years presented.
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33 Financial Risk Management

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management
framework. The board has established the key management personnel, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company's risk management policies. The key management personnel holds regular meetings and report to board on its activities.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analysis the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate
risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and
procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The board of directors oversee how key management personnel monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies
and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk.

Exposure arising from Risk Measurement  Management of risk

a Cash and cash equivalents, loans, Credit Aging analysis Diversification of funds to bank deposits, Liquid funds and Regular
Financial assets measured at risk monitoring of credit limits.
amortized cost.

b Borrowings and other liabiliies  Liquidity Rolling Cash Availability of surplus cash, committed credit lines and borrowing

risk flow forecasts  facilities
¢ Borrowed fund at Interest Rate ~ Market ~ Cash flow Regular monitoring to keep the net exposure atan acceptable level.
risk forecasting
Sensitivity
analysis o

A Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debt according to the contractual terms or
obligations. Credit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as
concentration of risks

The Group measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend, industry practices and the business
environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Financial instruments that are subject o concentration of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, investments, derivative
financial instruments and other financial assets. None of the financial instruments of the Company results in material concentration of
credit risk

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other deposits with banks is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits with
banks with high credit ratings assigned by external credit rating agencies; accordingly the Company considers that the related credit
risk is low.

ii) Trade receivables
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date. The expected credit losses over lifetime of the asset are estimated by
adopting the simplified approach using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rate reflecting future economic conditions.
In this approach assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit characteristics such as industry, customer segment, past due status
and other factors which are relevant to estimate the expected cash loss from these assets.

The Company expects to realise all the receivables in full, accordingly no provision has been made in the books of account.

iii) Other financial assets:

Other financial assets are tested for impairment and expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 12 month expected
credit loss. If the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, then the expected credit losses are
measured at an amount equal to life-time expected credit loss.
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B Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its Habilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation

Management monitors monthly rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of
expected cash flows. This is generally carried in accordance with standard guidelines. The Company has liquidity reserves in the form of
highly liquid assets in the form of cash and cash equivalent, deposit accounts, etc.

C Market risk
Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices such as interest rates will affect the Company's income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including long term debt.
The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to interest rate risk and the market value of the investments. Thus, the exposure
to market risk is a function of investing and borrowing actvities and revenue generating and operating activities.

D Foreign currency risk
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions, USD being its prime foreign currency.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is
not the Company's functional currency (INR). The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows.

i) Foreign currency risk exposure
The following foreign currency exposures have not been hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise at the balance sheet date:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Nature of Exposure: Currency  In Foreign In Rs. In Foreign In Rs.
Currency Currency
Receivables in foreign currency
- Trade Receivables UsD 1,64,21,412 1,40,35,38,088 64,22,625 53,52,61,568
- Trade Receivables EUR 5,05,107 4,67,52,704 B -
- Advances to Suppliers USsD 51,987 44,43,288 11,06,414 9,22,08,527
- Advances to Suppliers EUR 82,585 76,44,039 27,640 24,90,364
- Advances to Suppliers CHF = = 53,570 49,49,834
- Advances to Suppliers GBP - N 2,869 3,01,876
- Other Advances Usb 537 45,894 N o
UsD 1,64,73,936 1,40,80,27,270 75,29,039 62,74,70,095
EUR 5,87,692 5,43,96,743 27,640 24,90,364
CHF . = 53,570 49,49,834
GBP s = 2,869 3,01,876
Payables in foreign currency
-Trade payables UsD 6,95,121 5,94,12,008 3,70,431 3,08,71,720
-Trade payables EUR 23,237 21,50,857 67,320 60,65,533
- Other Pavyables USD 50,71,000 43,34,18,370 1,58,50,000 1,32,09,39,000
- Advances from Customers UsD 1,56,845 1,34,05,542 1,26,850 1,05,71,679
- Advances from Customers EUR 6,775 6,27,094 1,14,835 1,03,46,634
USD 59,22,966 50,62,35,920 1,63,47,281 1,36,23,82,399
EUR 30,012 27,77.951 182155 16412166
Ay c?
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ii) Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit and loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial
instruments and the impact on other components of equity arises from foreign forward exchange contracts designated as cash flow

hedges.

Particulars Impact on profit after tax
March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024

USD Sensitivity

INR/USD - Increase by 2 % (March 31, 2024 - 2%)* 1,80,35,827 -1,46,98,246

INR/USD - Decrease by 2 % (March 31, 2024 - 2% )* -1,80,35,827 1,46,98,246

EURQ Sensitivity

INR/EURO - Increase by 2 % (March 31, 2024 - 2%)* 10,32,376 -2,78,436

INR/EURO - Decrease by 2 % (March 31, 2024 - 2% )* -10,32,376 2,78,436

CHEF Sensitivity

INR/CHF - Increase by 2 % (March 31, 2024 - 2%)* - 98,997

INR/CHEF - Decrease by 2 % (March 31, 2024 - 2% }* - -98,997

GBP Sensitivity

INR/GBP - Increase by 2 % (March 31, 2024 - 2%)* - 6,038

INR/GBP - Decrease by 2 % (March 31, 2024 - 2% )* - -6,038

* Holding all other variable constant

E Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's debt
obligations with floating interest rates and investments. However the company's does not have any borrowings with floating rate of
interest.

All of the Company's borrowings are on a fixed rate of interest. The Company has exposure to interest rate risk, arising principally on
changes in Marginal Cost of Funds based Lending Rate (MCLR). The Company uses a mix of interest rate sensitive financial
instruments to manage the liquidity and fund requirements for its day to day operations like short term credit lines besides internal
accruals.

The exposures of the Company's financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Fixed rate Borrowings 76,85,44,376 96,35,88,868
Floating rate Borrowings v i
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TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts Amount in Rs.

42 Operating Segments

The Company is engaged in a single line of business of vision technology based products and solutions and operates from a single geographical location

(Bangalore, India). The Chief Revenue Officer (CRO) monitors the business as a whole for the purposes of making decisions on resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Accordingly, the Company has only one reportable segment, and the segment reporting requirements under IND AS 108 - Operating Segments are not
applicable beyond the entity-wide disclosures presented below.

A. Revenue from External Customers by geographical location

Geography 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
India (Domestic) 1,57,04,36,000 1,74,86,23,000
Outside India (Exports) 3,07,33,82,000 2,08,14,59,000

4,64,38,18,000 3,83,00,82,000

B. Information About Non-Current Assets
Non-current assets (excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets, and post-employment benefit assets) by geographical location

Geography 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
India 2,65,35,50,262 2,11,56,05,836
Qutside India 15,08,54,550

2,80,44,04,812 2,11,56,05,836

C. Information About Major Customers
Revenue from major customers (in excess of 10% of revenues) is as under. This revenue pertains to the Company’s primary service offerings in Vision
technology based products and solutions.

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Revenue from major customers 3,37,30,86,660 2,34,46,19,809
Percentage 72.64% 61.22%

No of Customers Two Two
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TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts

Amount in Rs.

Name of Related Party Nature of transactions 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24
Enterprise having Substantial Interest
¢. Tonbo Imaging Pte. Ltd., Singapore Sales 2,47,800 -
Purchases of Project Material / Equipment 43,97,87,607 48,82,29,558
Purchases of Intangible Assets - 1,83,19,08,000
Services - Payable 7,99,99,920 10,51,27,769
Balances outstanding at the year-end Payable 41,23,94,271 1,24,63,02,803
d. UAB Tonbo Imaging, Lithuania Purchases of Project Material / Equipment - 15,30,60,955
Balances outstanding at the year-end payable - 3,76,258
e. HBL Engineering Limited Sales - 41,67,79,111
(Formerly known as HBL Power Systems Limited) Reimbursement of expenses - payable 25,27,508
Purchases of Project Material / Equipment 68,41,58,000
Services - Payable 18,04,416
Allotment of Preference Shares - 86,67,41,568
Balances outstanding at the year-end Receivable 4,13,085 4,13,085
f. Key Management Personnel
i. Arvind Lakshmikumar Managerial Remuneration -
Service Payable 21,00,000 17,50,000
ii. Cecilia D'Souza Managerial Remuneration 1,39,44,122 12,21,043

jii. Ankit Kumar Managerial Remuneration - -

g.  Wholly Owned Subsidiaries
i The Company has set up a wholly owned subsidiary Tcnbo LLC in the Republic of Armenia on 3rd September 2024 and has committed to subscribe to 100% of
the share capital of the wholly owned subsidiary for AMD 40,000 (INR 9,042). In the FY 2025-26, the Company shall remit the funds towards the share
subscription.

ii The Company is also setting up a wholly owned subsidiary in Australia. As part of the process, Tonbo Systems Pty Ltd was incorporated on 10th July 2024,
and one of the Directors, Arvind Lakshmikumar, has subscribed to 100% of the share capital for AUD 1 (INR 62) on behalf of the Company. In the FY 2025-26,
the Company shall undertake necessary actions to ensuse the share of Tonbo Systems Pty Ltd are held in the name of the Company.

iii In accordance with the provisions of Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 110 - Consolidated Financial Statements, the Company is required to present

consolidated financial statements including those of its subsidiaries. Holfayer, the financial information of the said subsidiaries has not been consolidated for
Q) PR NV .

assessed the impact of non-consolidation and is of the opinion thayéi{oes not affetfthe true and fair view of the financial statements of the Company.

the financial year ended March 31, 2025, as the operations and finz uf{?),rﬁﬁﬁ?s {oithe subsidiaries are not material to the Group as a whole. Management has
does
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TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts Amount in Rs.

46 Taxation

a) Current Tax:

The Company has calculated its tax liability after considering the provisions of law relating to New Tax Regime under
section 115BAA as per the Provisions of Income Tax Act 1961. Hence the provisions of Minimum Alternative Tax
(MAT) are not applicable from Financial year 2023-24. The Income tax provision for the year is included under the head
' Current Liabilities - Provisions '.

b) Transfer Pricing

The Finance Act, 2001, has introduced, with effect from assessment year 2002-03 (effective April 1, 2001), detailed
Transfer Pricing regulations for computing the income from ‘international transactions’ between ‘associated

enterprises’ on an ‘arm’s length’ basis. These regulations, inter alia, also require the maintenance of prescribed
documents and information including furnishing a report from an Accountant within the due date of filing the Return
of Income.

The Management is of the opinion that its international transactions with associated enterprises are at arm's length and
accordingly the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the tax
liability.

47 Additional regulatory information

a The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender. Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the same were obtained.

b The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

c The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013.

d The Company has not entered into any scheme of arrangement which has an accounting impact on current or previous
financial year.

e There is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

f The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year.

g The Company does not hold any Immovable properties. The Company has not revalued its property, plant and
equipment or intangible assets or both during the current or previous year.

h The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Group does not have any CICs, which are part of the Group.

i The Company has not made any investments and hence compliance with respect to number of layers prescribed under
section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction of number of layers) Rules, 2017 is not
applicable.
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TONBO IMAGING INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to Accounts Amount in Rs.

i Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium

(A) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

(B) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
ii) ) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ulimate beneficiaries."

k There are no charges or satisfaction which are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory
period.

1 The Company has obtained working capital limit on the basis of security of current assets from bank and the quarterly
returns / statements filed by the Company are materially in agreement with the books of accounts.

m The Company has not granted any loans or advances to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined
under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.

n  No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Company under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and
Rules made thereunder.

48 Previous year’s figures have been re-grouped / re-classified wherever considered necessary

For Kalyanasundaram and Associates anb and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants /
Firm Registration No. 0054555 f
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